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to submit and post such files).   o Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1.   FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VISTA GOLD CORP. (An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - UNAUDITED

September
30,

December
31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2009 2008

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $33,723 $13,266
Marketable securities - Note 4 791 8,153
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 55 127
Prepaids and other 545 466
    Current assets 35,114 22,012

Mineral properties - Note 5 35,567 30,407
Amayapampa disposal consideration - Note 3 4,813 4,813
Plant and equipment - Note 6 18,772 18,533

59,152 53,753

Total assets $94,266 $75,765

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Accounts payable $203 $-
Accrued liabilities and other 1,315 803
    Current liabilities 1,518 803

Convertible Notes - Note 7 24,237 23,496
Other long-term liabilities 228 228
    Total liabilities 25,983 24,527

Capital stock, no par value: - Note 8
    Preferred - unlimited shares authorized; no shares outstanding
    Common - unlimited shares authorized; shares outstanding:
         2009 - 44,595,829 and 2008 - 34,475,829 245,646 225,098
Warrants 336 336
Options - Note 9 5,188 4,634
Contributed surplus - Note 10 1,620 1,387
Equity component of convertible notes - Note 7 5,998 6,298
Accumulated other comprehensive income - Note 11 319 4,602
Deficit (190,824 ) (191,117 )
     Total shareholders' equity 68,283 51,238

 Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $94,266 $75,765
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Subsequent events — Note 17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

- 1 -
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VISTA GOLD CORP. (An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS AND (LOSS) AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS -
UNAUDITED

Three Months Ended September
30,

Nine Months Ended September
30,

Cumulative
during

Exploration
(U.S. dollars in thousands,
except share data) 2009 2008 2009 2008 Stage

Income:
Gain/(loss) on disposal of
marketable securities $ 14 $ - $ 6,829 $ (67 ) $ 7,062
Gain on repurchase of
convertible notes 537 - 537 - 537
Interest income 16 137 65 417 2,593
Gain/(loss) on currency
translation 52 (204 ) 97 (198 ) (296 )
    Total other income 619 (67 ) 7,528 152 9,896

Costs and expenses:
Exploration, property
evaluation and holding costs (412 ) (245 ) (1,014 ) (742 ) (3,852 )
Corporate administration and
investor relations (1,320 ) (1,739 ) (3,305 ) (4,279 ) (23,250 )
Costs of Arrangement - - - - (2,901 )
Depreciation and amortization (66 ) (44 ) (180 ) (123 ) (550 )
Interest expense (560 ) (617 ) (1,723 ) (1,386 ) (3,727 )
Write-down of marketable
securities - - (123 ) - (849 )
Loss on sale of mineral
property - - (131 ) (132 ) (263 )
Other income/(expense) (2 ) 3 (2 ) 17 372
    Total costs and expenses (2,360 ) (2,642 ) (6,478 ) (6,645 ) (35,020 )
Earnings/(loss) from
continuing operations before
income taxes (1,741 ) (2,709 ) 1,050 (6,493 ) (25,124 )
Future income tax
benefit/(expense) 24 (114 ) (757 ) (207 ) 55
Earnings/(loss) from
continuing operations after
income taxes (1,717 ) (2,823 ) 293 (6,700 ) (25,069 )
Loss from discontinued
operations - - - (294 ) (16,879 )

Net earnings/(loss) $ (1,717 ) $ (2,823 ) $ 293 $ (6,994 ) $ (41,948 )

Other comprehensive loss:
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Unrealized fair-value
increase/(decrease) on
available-for-sale securities 149 (645 ) 1,521 (1,233 )
Realized (gain)/loss on
available-for-sale securities (13 ) - (5,805 ) 57

136 (645 ) (4,284 ) (1,176 )
Comprehensive loss $ (1,581 ) $ (3,468 ) $ (3,991 ) $ (8,170 )

Weighted average number of
shares outstanding 35,408,438 34,452,375 34,790,115 34,211,221

Basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share from
continuing operations $ (0.05 ) $ (0.08 ) $ 0.01 $ (0.20 )
Basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share $ (0.05 ) $ (0.08 ) $ 0.01 $ (0.20 )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VISTA GOLD CORP. (An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF DEFICIT — UNAUDITED

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Deficit, beginning of period $(189,107 ) $(185,315 ) $(191,117 ) $(181,144 )
Net earnings/(loss) (1,717 ) (2,823 ) 293 (6,994 )
Deficit, end of period $(190,824 ) $(188,138 ) $(190,824 ) $(188,138 )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VISTA GOLD CORP. (An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — UNAUDITED

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

Cumulative
during

Exploration
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2009 2008 Stage

Cash flows from operating activities:
Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations
after income taxes $(1,717 ) $(2,823 ) $293 $(6,700 ) $ (25,069 )

Adjustments to reconcile loss for the period to
cash provided by / (used in) operations:
Depreciation and amortization 66 44 180 123 573
Stock-based compensation 422 780 662 1,385 6,481
(Gain)/loss on disposal of marketable
securities (14 ) - (6,829 ) 67 (7,324 )
Gain on repurchase of convertible notes (537 ) - (537 ) - (537 )
Future income tax (benefit)/expense (24 ) 114 757 207 (55 )
Accretion of convertible notes 252 262 775 577 1,613
Accrued interest 308 355 948 809 2,116
Loss on disposal of mineral property - - 131 132 263
Prepaid transaction costs - - - - 1,841
Write-down of marketable securities - - 123 - 849
Other non-cash items - - - - (313 )

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (8 ) 29 56 (37 ) (469 )
Interest paid (11 ) - (1,511 ) (842 ) (3,853 )
Prepaids and other 131 (47 ) (79 ) (308 ) (365 )
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and
other 168 (420 ) (158 ) (398 ) (1,039 )
    Net cash used in operating activities (964 ) (1,706 ) (5,189 ) (4,985 ) (25,288 )

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of marketable securities (9 ) (49 ) (9 ) (126 ) (1,035 )
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 21 - 9,055 89 10,144
Additions to mineral properties, net of cost
recoveries (1,371 ) (3,113 ) (3,010 ) (6,996 ) (23,400 )
Acquisition of mineral property - - - (452 ) (3,332 )
Additions to plant and equipment (95 ) (530 ) (419 ) (17,165 ) (19,061 )
Proceeds on disposal of mineral property -
Note 5 - - 188 - 188
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment - - - - 52
Short-term loan receivable - 350 - - -
Cash transferred to Allied Nevada Gold
Corp., net of receivable - - - - (24,517 )

(1,454 ) (3,342 ) 5,805 (24,650 ) (60,961 )
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    Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from equity financings - Note 8 20,707 - 20,707 - 75,116
Repurchase of convertible debt - Note 7 (866 ) - (866 ) - (866 )
Proceeds from exercise of warrants - - - 2,941 39,020
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 70 - 139 2,794
Issuance of convertible notes, net of issuance
costs - - - 28,390 28,345
Prepaid transaction costs - - - - (1,841 )
    Net cash provided by financing activities 19,841 70 19,841 31,470 142,568

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents - continuing operations 17,423 (4,978 ) 20,457 1,835 56,319
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents - discontinued operations (Note 3) - - - (294 ) (23,270 )
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 17,423 (4,978 ) 20,457 1,541 33,049

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
period - continuing operations 16,300 23,205 13,266 16,686 674

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $33,723 $18,227 $33,723 $18,227 $ 33,723

Supplemental cash flow information - Note 13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

- 4 -
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VISTA GOLD CORP. (AN EXPLORATION STAGE ENTERPRISE)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - UNAUDITED

(All amounts in tables are in thousands of US Dollars, except per share amounts and number of shares, unless noted
otherwise)

1.           General

The consolidated interim financial statements of Vista Gold Corp. (an Exploration Stage Enterprise) (the
“Corporation”), as of September 30, 2009 have been prepared by the Corporation without audit and do not include all of
the disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles in Canada for annual financial statements. As
described in Note 15, generally accepted accounting principles in Canada differ in certain material respects from
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.  In the opinion of management, all of the adjustments
necessary to fairly present the interim financial information set forth herein have been made.  These adjustments are of
a normal and recurring nature. The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the
operating results of a full year or of future years.  These interim financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and related footnotes included in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008, as amended.

2.           Nature of operations and changes in accounting policies

Nature of operations

The Corporation evaluates, acquires and explores gold exploration and potential development projects. As such, the
Corporation is considered an Exploration Stage Enterprise. The Corporation’s approach to acquisitions of gold projects
has generally been to seek projects within political jurisdictions with well established mining, land ownership and tax
laws, which have adequate drilling and geological data to support the completion of a third-party review of the
geological data and to complete an estimate of the gold mineralization. In addition, the Corporation looks for
opportunities to improve the value of its gold projects through exploration drilling, and/or re-engineering the operating
assumptions underlying previous engineering work.

In 2007, the Board of Directors and management reevaluated the corporate strategy regarding the development of the
Corporation’s more advanced projects.  As a result of this reevaluation, the Corporation has begun moving its more
advanced projects through preliminary and advanced feasibility studies in preparation for mine development so that
production decisions can be made on those projects.

Although the Corporation has reviewed and is satisfied with the title for all mineral properties in which it has a
material interest, there is no guarantee that title to such concessions will not be challenged or impugned.

Changes in accounting policies

In February 2008, the CICA issued Section 3064, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, which replaces Section 3062,
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets,” and results in a withdrawal of CICA Section 3450, “Research and Development Costs,”
and amendments to Accounting Guideline (AcG) 11, “Enterprises in the Development Stage,” and CICA Section 1000,
“Financial Statement Concepts.” The standard intends to reduce the differences with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) in the accounting for intangible assets and results in closer alignment with U.S. GAAP. Under
former Canadian standards, more items were recognized as assets than under IFRS or U.S. GAAP. The objectives of
CICA Section 3064 are to reinforce the principle-based approach to the recognition of assets only in accordance with
the definition of an asset and the criteria for asset recognition.  This standard is effective for the Corporation
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commencing January 1, 2009. The Corporation has determined there is no impact on its current financial statements.

3.           Amayapampa disposal consideration

On April 7, 2008, the Corporation entered into an agreement to dispose of its wholly-owned subsidiary Vista Gold
(Antigua) Corp. (“Vista Gold Antigua”) to Republic Gold Limited (“Republic”). Vista Gold Antigua indirectly held the
Corporation’s interest in the Amayapampa gold project in Bolivia. Under the terms of the transaction, Republic agreed
to pay to the Corporation, $3.0 million in three payments of $1.0 million. The first of these payments will be due and
payable upon the start of Commercial Production (as defined in the purchase and sale agreement) at Amayapampa
followed by $1.0 million payments on each of the first and second anniversaries of the start of commercial
production.  In addition, Republic agreed to pay to the Corporation a net smelter return royalty (“NSR”) on the gold
produced by or on behalf of Republic from the Amayapampa project in varying percentages depending on the price of
gold per ounce. When gold is between $500.01 and $650.00 per ounce, a 2% NSR is payable, when the price of gold
is between $650.01 and $750.00 per ounce, a 3% NSR is payable, and when the price of gold is $750.01 per ounce
and above, an NSR of 3.5% is payable. The NSR is capped at 720,000 gold equivalent ounces and no NSR payments
are due to the Corporation if the gold price is below $500 per ounce.   The fair value of the consideration received
upon the disposal of the Amayapampa project has been calculated as of September 30, 2009 using probability
weighted cash flow scenarios and assumptions including future gold prices, estimated gold production and the timing
of commencement of commercial production.  The majority of these inputs in the “income approach” valuation model
used by the Corporation are considered to be level three unobservable inputs as defined by SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements.”  These are the Corporation’s own assumptions based on management’s best estimates and the best
information available at the time.

- 5 -
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VISTA GOLD CORP. (AN EXPLORATION STAGE ENTERPRISE)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - UNAUDITED

(All amounts in tables are in thousands of US Dollars, except per share amounts and number of shares, unless noted
otherwise)

4.           Marketable securities

At September 30, 2009 At December 31, 2008

Cost
Unrealized
gain/(loss) Fair value Cost

Unrealized
gain/(loss) Fair value

 Allied Nevada Gold Corp. $- $- $- $2,194 $5,547 $7,741
 Esperanza Silver Corp. 10 65 75 10 35 45
 Luzon Minerals 12 16 28 12 - 12
 Nevgold Resources Corp. 59 56 115 44 - 44
 Other 335 238 573 480 (169 ) 311

$416 $375 $791 $2,740 $5,413 $8,153

On April 3, 2009 the Corporation announced that it had sold all of its 1,529,848 shares of Allied Nevada Gold Corp.
(“Allied”) for $9,016,088.  These shares had an original cost of $2,194,397 and when sold, resulted in a realized gain of
$6,821,691.  In May 2007, the Corporation completed a transaction that resulted in the formation of Allied and the
transfer of the Corporation’s Nevada properties to Allied. The Allied shares sold by the Corporation were retained in
connection with this transaction to facilitate the payment of any taxes payable by the Corporation in respect of the
transaction.  The Corporation has determined that there are no other taxes payable by it in respect of the transaction
and made the decision to sell the Allied shares at the appropriate time and use the cash for project development
requirements.

5.           Mineral properties

2008 2009

December
31, net
balance

Acquisition
costs

Disposal
of

mineral
property

Option
payments

Exploration
& land
costs

Capitalized
interest

Capitalized
stock
based

compensation

Year to
date

activity

September
30,

ending
balance

 Long
Valley,
United
States 960 - - - 18 - - 18 978
 Yellow
Pine,
United
States 878 - - - 3 - - 3 881
 Paredones
Amarillos,
Mexico 9,237 - - - 1,247 2,330 70 3,647 12,884
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 Guadalupe
de los
Reyes,
Mexico 3,136 - - - 133 - 5 138 3,274
 Awak
Mas,
Indonesia 3,757 - - - 166 - 1 167 3,924
 Mt. Todd,
Australia 11,967 - - - 1,390 - 51 1,441 13,408
 Other 472 - (321 ) 50 17 - - (254 ) 218

$ 30,407 $ - $ (321 ) $ 50 $ 2,974 $ 2,330 $ 127 $ 5,160 $ 35,567

The recoverability of the carrying values of the Corporation’s mineral properties is dependent upon the successful
start-up and commercial production from, or sale or lease of, these properties and upon economic reserves being
discovered or developed on the properties.  Development and/or start-up of any of these projects will depend, among
other things, on management’s ability to raise
additional capital for these purposes.  Although the Corporation has been successful in raising such capital in the past,
there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so in the future.

A write-down in the carrying values of one or more of the Corporation’s mineral properties may be required in the
future as a result of events and circumstances, such as the Corporation’s inability to obtain all the necessary permits,
resulting in an evaluation of gold resources and the application of an impairment test which is based on estimates of
gold resources and gold prices. The Corporation has determined that no impairment provision is currently required.

- 6 -
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VISTA GOLD CORP. (AN EXPLORATION STAGE ENTERPRISE)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - UNAUDITED

(All amounts in tables are in thousands of US Dollars, except per share amounts and number of shares, unless noted
otherwise)

As of September 30, 2009, the Corporation had not yet received the necessary permits needed to begin development
and construction of the Paredones Amarillos gold project.  The Corporation has subsequently received the Temporary
Occupation Permits ("TOPs"), which are a necessary prerequisite for the Change of Forest Land Use Permit
("CFLUP").  The Corporation has the necessary environmental permit and has completed the other prerequisite studies
for the submittal of the CFLUP permit application and expects to file the permit application in the upcoming days. 
See Note - 17.

On June 2, 2009, the Corporation sold most of its remaining patented mining claims in Colorado for cash proceeds of
$188,000.  These claims had a book value of $321,000 and upon disposition the Corporation recognized a loss of
$133,000.

6.           Property, plant and equipment

September 30, 2009 December 31, 2008

Cost
Accumulated
Depreciation Net Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation Net

Paredones Amarillos, Mexico 18,168 26 18,142 18,006 12 17,994
Awak Mas, Indonesia 119 84 35 116 70 46
Mt. Todd, Australia 791 272 519 584 170 414
Corporate, United States 300 224 76 252 173 79

$19,378 $ 606 $18,772 $18,958 $ 425 $18,533

7.           Brokered private placement of convertible notes

On March 4, 2008, the Corporation completed a private placement in which the Corporation issued and sold $30
million in aggregate principal amount of senior secured convertible notes (the “Notes”).  The Notes are secured only by
the assets at the Paredones Amarillos gold project.  The Notes mature at face value on March 4, 2011 (the “Maturity
Date”).  The Notes pay interest of 10% per annum. Interest is payable each year in two installments on June 15 and
December 15, and the principal is payable on the Maturity Date.

The Notes are convertible at the holder’s or issuer’s discretion in accordance with the terms of the Notes.  The holder
can convert all or part of the debt at any time prior to the Maturity Date or the business day immediately preceding the
Redemption Date at a price of $6.00 per common share (subsequently adjusted to $4.80, as discussed below), subject
to adjustment in certain circumstances.  The “Redemption Date” represents the date that the Notes will be redeemed in
the event that the Corporation redeems the Notes.

The Corporation can convert all, but not part, of the Notes after March 4, 2009 if the weighted-average price of the
Corporation’s common shares as quoted on the NYSE — AMEX (“AMEX”) has been equal to or greater than $9.00 per
share for 15 consecutive trading days.  The notice of conversion must occur within 10 days of any such 15-day period
and the share price must be equal to or greater than $9.00 on the date the notice is delivered.  The conversion price
was originally $6.00 per common share and is subject to adjustments in certain circumstances.
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Pursuant to the terms of the Notes, on March 4, 2009, the conversion price of the Notes was automatically adjusted
from $6.00 per share to $4.80 per share.  As a result of the adjustment, 6.25 million Common shares are issuable upon
conversion of the Notes.  Prior to the adjustment, 5 million Common shares were issuable upon the conversion of the
Notes.

The Notes have been accounted for in accordance with EIC 164, “Convertible and other Debt Instruments with
Embedded
Derivatives”.  Under EIC 164, the fair value of the conversion feature is recorded as equity.  The issuance date fair
value of the conversion feature was estimated to be $6.8 million and was classified as the equity component of
convertible notes with the residual balance of $23.2 million being recorded as the fair value of the Corporation’s
obligation to make principal and interest payments and has been classified as long-term debt.  The fees totaling
$1,988,000 related to the issuance of the Notes have been allocated pro-rata between debt issuance costs of
$1,531,000 and equity issuance costs of $457,000.

- 7 -
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VISTA GOLD CORP. (AN EXPLORATION STAGE ENTERPRISE)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - UNAUDITED

(All amounts in tables are in thousands of US Dollars, except per share amounts and number of shares, unless noted
otherwise)

On July 14, 2009, the Corporation entered into Note Repurchase Agreements (the “Whitebox Repurchase Agreements”)
with Whitebox Combined Partners, LP (“Whitebox Combined Partners”), Whitebox Convertible Arbitrage Partners, LP
(“Whitebox Convertible Arbitrage”) and Whitebox Special Opportunities Fund Series B Partners, LP (“Whitebox Special
Opportunities”) whereby the Corporation agreed to repurchase their respective Notes.

Pursuant to the Whitebox Repurchase Agreements, the Corporation agreed to repurchase Notes (i) in the principal
amount of $504,000 from Whitebox Combined Partners for an aggregate purchase price, including interest, of
$331,800; (ii) in the principal amount of $510,000 from Whitebox Convertible Arbitrage for an aggregate purchase
price, including interest, of $335,750; and (iii) in the principal amount of $319,000 from Whitebox Special
Opportunities for an aggregate purchase price, including interest, of $210,008, based on a settlement date of July 14,
2009.  The Corporation allocated the consideration paid on the repurchase of the convertible notes to the liability and
equity elements of the security based on their relative fair values at the date of the transaction as is required under EIC
196.  A gain of $537,000 was recorded in the Corporation’s Consolidated Statement of Earnings and (Loss) as a result
of the Notes repurchase.

The Whitebox Repurchase Agreements were initiated by Whitebox Advisors LLC and were not the result of any
solicitation by or on behalf of the Corporation. The Corporation has not initiated any broader effort to repurchase or
restructure any of its remaining Notes and did not act upon the basis of material non-public information in
determining to enter into the Whitebox Repurchase Agreements.

The Corporation capitalizes interest and accretion based on expenditures on qualifying assets.  As of September 30,
2009, the Corporation had qualifying expenditures of approximately $17.8 million related to the equipment purchase
for the Paredones Amarillos project.  The Corporation has expended approximately $27.3 million for ongoing
operations at the Paredones Amarillos project.  This includes approximately $17.8 million towards the purchase of
gold processing equipment to be used at the Paredones Amarillos project.  The remaining $2.7 million raised from the
private placement, is restricted for, and will be used for ongoing development at the Paredones Amarillos project.

A reconciliation of the carrying value of the long-term liability portion of the Notes is as follows:

Principal amount of the Notes $30,000
Issuance costs allocated to long-term liabilities (1,531 )
Conversion feature allocated to equity before issuance costs (6,755 )
Carrying value of the Notes upon issuance 21,714
Repurchase of $1.3 million of convertible notes (1,103 )
Accretion expense 3,626
Carrying value of the Notes at September 30, 2009 $24,237

8.           Capital stock

Number of
shares

Capital
stock
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issued
As of December 31, 2008 34,475,829 $225,098

Public offering 8,800,000 17,809
Over-allotment 1,320,000 2,739

As of September 30, 2009 44,595,829 $245,646

On September 21, 2009, the Corporation completed a public offering of common shares pursuant to a shelf
registration statement previously filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and a shelf
prospectus previously filed with certain Canadian securities regulatory authorities. The Corporation offered and sold
8.8 million common shares at a price of $2.25 per common share. The Corporation granted the underwriters a 30-day
option to purchase up to 1.32 million additional common shares to cover over-allotments, if any.  Proceeds to the
Corporation from the public offering, net of commissions, fees and expenses, were approximately $17.8 million.

On September 25, 2009, the Corporation completed the closing of the sale of 1.32 million common shares, pursuant to
the underwriters' exercise of the over-allotment option, which the Corporation granted in connection with its public
offering of common shares.  Consistent with the public offering of common shares that closed on September 21, 2009,
the 1.32 million common shares were sold to Dahlman Rose & Company and Wellington West Capital Markets, as
underwriters, at the public offering price of $2.25 per common share.  The over-allotment was made pursuant to the
Corporation’s shelf registration statement filed with the SEC and a shelf prospectus filed with certain Canadian
securities regulatory authorities.  With the sale of the additional 1.32 million common shares to the underwriters,
10.12 million common shares in total were sold in connection with the offering.  Proceeds to the Corporation from the
over-allotment, net of commissions, were approximately $2.7 million.

- 8 -
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9.           Options to purchase common shares

Under the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”), the Corporation may grant options to directors, officers,
employees and consultants of the Corporation or its subsidiaries.  The maximum number of common shares of the
Corporation that may be reserved for issuance under the Plan is a variable number equal to 10% of the issued and
outstanding common shares on a non-diluted basis.  Under the Plan, the exercise price of each option shall not be less
than the market price of the Corporation’s common shares on the date preceding the date of grant, and an option’s
maximum term is 10 years or such other shorter term as stipulated in a stock option agreement between the
Corporation and the optionee.  Options under the Plan are granted from time to time at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, with vesting periods and other terms as determined by the Board.

The fair value of stock options granted to employees and directors was estimated at the grant date using the
Hull-White trinomial lattice option pricing model, using the following weighted average assumptions:

September
2009

September
2008

Expected volatility
77.69 -
78.80%

55.07 -
55.19%

Risk-free interest
rate 2.45 - 2.58% 3.09 - 3.15%

Expected lives
(years) 5 5
Dividend yield N/A N/A

Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected price
volatility.  Expected price volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Corporation’s common shares.  Changes
in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, and therefore, the existing models do
not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of the Corporation’s stock options.  The expected term of
the options granted is derived from the output of the option pricing model and represents the period of time that the
options granted are expected to be outstanding.  The risk-free rate for the periods within the contractual term of the
option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the date of grant.

A summary of option activity under the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan as of September 30, 2009, and changes
during the nine-month period then ended is set forth in the following table:

Number of
Shares

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term
Outstanding - December 31, 2008 2,184,747 $ 4.39 3.55
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Granted 50,000 2.15
Expired (18,968 ) 3.35
Cancelled (7,500 ) 4.13
Forfeited (2,500 ) 3.22

Outstanding - March 31, 2009 2,205,779 $ 4.35 3.37

Expired (9,484 ) 2.63

Outstanding - June 30, 2009 2,196,295 $ 4.36 3.13

Granted 810,000 1.82
Expired (56,909 ) 2.42

Outstanding - September 30, 2009 2,949,386 $ 3.71 3.49

Exercisable - September 30, 2009 2,519,386 $ 4.03 3.26

A summary of the fair-value changes included in options within Shareholders’ Equity as of September 30, 2009 is set
forth in the following table:

Fair Value
As of December 31, 2008 $4,634

Expensed 100
Capitalized as mineral properties 34
Granted 27
Expired (62 )
Cancelled (14 )
Forfeited (2 )

As of March 31, 2009 $4,717

Expensed 115
Capitalized as mineral properties 26
Expired (25 )

As of June 30, 2009 $4,833

Expensed 33
Capitalized as mineral properties 127
Granted 327
Expired (132 )

As of September 30, 2009 $5,188

- 9 -
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The total number of options outstanding at the end of the quarter is 2,949,386 with exercise prices ranging from
approximately $1.77 to $7.45 and remaining lives of 0.11 to 4.98 years.  The total number of options outstanding
represents 6.6% of issued capital.

A summary of the status of the Corporation’s unvested stock options as of September 30, 2009, is set forth below:

Number of
Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Value
Unvested - December 31, 2009 415,000 $ 1.49

Granted 25,000 1.06
Forfeited (2,500 ) 1.30

Unvested - March 31, 2009 437,500 $ 1.30

Vested (5,000 ) 1.35

Unvested - June 30, 2009 432,500 $ 1.30

Granted 405,000 0.91
Vested (407,500 ) 1.32

Unvested - September 30, 2009 430,000 $ 0.92

As of September 30, 2009, there was $3,864,198 of unrecognized compensation expense related to the unvested
portion of options outstanding.  This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.87
years.

10.           Contributed surplus

September
30,

December 
31,

2009 2008
Balance, beginning of year $1,387 $253

Cancelled options—Note 8 14 341
Expired options—Note 8 219 262
Expired warrants - 531

Balance, end of year $1,620 $1,387
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11.           Accumulated other comprehensive income

A reconciliation of the amounts contained in accumulated other comprehensive income is as follows:

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income, before

tax

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income, net of

tax
As of December 31, 2008 $ 5,413 $ 4,602

Increases to fair market value during period 1,383 1,175
Increases due to realization of loss 7 6

As of March 31, 2009 $ 6,803 $ 5,783

Increases to fair market value during period 233 198
Decreases due to realization of gain (6,822 ) (5,798 )

As of June 30, 2009 $ 214 $ 183

Increases to fair market value during period 176 149
Decreases due to realization of a gain (14 ) (13 )

As of September 30, 2009 $ 376 $ 319

- 10 -
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12.           Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified into one of five categories:  held-to-maturity, available-for-sale,
held-for-trading, loans and receivables and other financial liabilities.

All financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or held-for-trading are subsequently measured at fair
value.  Changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated as held-for-trading are charged or credited to the
statement of loss for the relevant period, while changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated as
available-for-sale, excluding impairments, are charged or credited to other comprehensive income until the instrument
is realized.  All other financial assets and liabilities are accounted for at cost or at amortized cost depending upon the
nature of the instrument.  After their initial fair value measurement, they are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Financial Assets

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets are as follows:

September 30, 2009 December 31, 2008

Category
Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Cash and cash equivalents Held-for-trading $33,723 $33,723 $13,266 $13,266
Accounts receivable (1) Loans and receivables 55 55 127 127
Amayapampa disposal
consideration Held-for-trading 4,813 4,813 4,813 4,813
Marketable securities (2) Available-for-sale 791 791 8,153 8,153
Total financial assets $39,382 $39,382 $26,359 $26,359

(1) Carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

(2) The fair value represents quoted market prices in an active market.

Financial liabilities

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial liabilities are as follows:

September30, 2009 December 31, 2008

Category
Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities (1) Other financial liabilities $1,518 $1,518 $803 $803
Other long-term liabilities (1) Other financial liabilities 228 228 225 228
Convertible notes (2) Other financial liabilities 26,973 24,237 25,896 23,496
Total financial assets $28,719 $25,983 $26,924 $24,527
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(1) Carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

(2)The carrying value of the convertible notes is being accreted to their maturity value over their expected life using
the effective interest rate method.  The fair value of the convertible notes has been estimated using the net present
value method for the full amount of the remaining $28.6 million debt.

Financial instrument risk exposure and risk management

The Corporation is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks.  Management
approves and monitors the risk management processes.  The types of risk exposure and the way in which such
exposure is managed is provided as follows:

Credit risk

The Corporation’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its cash and cash equivalents.  The Corporation monitors its
cash and cash equivalents in order to limit its exposure to credit risk.  The Corporation has invested in certificates of
deposits in some of its savings accounts.  However, these investments are backed by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation.

Liquidity risk

The Corporation’s objective is to maintain sufficient capital to meet short term business requirements, after taking into
account the Corporation’s holdings of cash and cash equivalents and cash flows from financing activities.  The
Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents are held in interest bearing liquid savings accounts.

Market risk

The significant market risk exposure to which the Corporation is exposed is interest rate risk.  The Corporation’s policy
is to invest cash at floating rates of interest in short-term highly liquid cash savings accounts in order to maintain
liquidity.  Fluctuations in interest therefore have little impact on the value of cash equivalents and short term
investments.  With respect to financial liabilities, the convertible notes are not subject to interest rate risk because they
bear interest at a fixed rate and are not subject to fluctuations in interest.

13.           Supplemental cash flow information

There were no significant non-cash transactions during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009.

Significant non-cash transactions during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 included:  (a) the Corporation’s
issuance of 37,318 common shares as a success fee payment to Prime Corporate Finance Pty Limited as compensation
for advisory services provided to the Corporation in connection with the Corporation’s disposition of the Amayapampa
project to Republic Gold Limited (Note 3); (b) the Corporation’s issuance of 213,503 common shares as partial
compensation for the acquisition of interests in various mineral properties adjacent to the Corporation’s Guadalupe de
los Reyes project in Mexico; and (c) the Corporation’s issuance of 200,000 common share purchase warrants to
Casimir Capital LP as partial compensation for serving as agent for the Corporation’s private placement of senior
secured convertible notes (Note 7).

- 11 -
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14.           Geographic and segment information

The Corporation evaluates, acquires and explores gold exploration and potential development projects.  These
activities are focused principally in Mexico, Australia, North America and Indonesia. The Corporation reported no
revenues in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, or for the same period in 2008.  Geographic
segmentation of mineral properties and plant and equipment is provided in Notes 5 and 6.

15.           Differences between Canadian and United States generally accepted accounting principles

The Corporation prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Canada, which differ in some respects from those in the United States.  The significant differences between generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in Canada and in the United States, as they relate to these financial
statements, are as follows:

(a)In accordance with U.S. GAAP, exploration, mineral property evaluation and holding costs are expensed as
incurred.  When proven and probable reserves are determined for a property and a bankable feasibility study is
completed, then subsequent development costs on the property would be capitalized.   Total capitalized cost of
such properties is measured periodically for recoverability of carrying value under SFAS No. 144.  Under
Canadian GAAP, all such costs are permitted to be capitalized.

(b)Under Canadian corporate law, the Corporation underwent a capital reduction in connection with the
amalgamation of Granges, Inc. (“Granges”) and Hycroft Resources & Development, Inc. whereby share capital and
contributed surplus were reduced to eliminate the consolidated accumulated deficit of Granges as of December 31,
1994, after giving effect to the estimated costs of amalgamation. Under U.S. corporate law, no such transaction is
available and accordingly is not allowed under U.S. GAAP.

(c)In accordance with U.S. GAAP (SFAS No. 123R), the fair value of all options granted after January 1, 2006 is
calculated at the date of grant and expensed over the expected vesting period.  On transition to this new standard,
the unvested portion of options granted to employees before January 1, 2006 is expensed over the remaining
vesting period using the fair value on the date of grant.  Prior to January 1, 2006, the Corporation did not record
any compensation cost on the granting of stock options to employees and directors as the exercise price was equal
to or greater than the market price at the date of grants for U.S. GAAP purposes under APB Opinion
No. 25.  SFAS No. 123R essentially aligns U.S. GAAP with Canadian GAAP for accounting for stock-based
compensation.

(d)In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the entire amount of convertible debt is classified as a liability and recorded at
fair value on the date of issuance. Under Canadian GAAP, the fair value of the conversion feature of the
convertible debt is classified as equity and the residual balance is classified as a liability. Under Canadian GAAP a
portion of the debt issuance costs were allocated to equity. Under U.S. GAAP all issuance costs were allocated to
debt. The liability portion is accreted each period in amounts which will increase the liability to its full face
amount of the convertible instrument as of the maturity date.

(e)In accordance with U.S. GAAP (SFAS No. 109), the reversal of a valuation allowance which is directly related to
the gain or loss of available-for-sale securities, when a Corporation has no expectations of taxable income in
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future periods, is recorded in other comprehensive income/(loss). Under Canadian GAAP, the Corporation
adopted EIC 172, effective September 30, 2008. This standard requires the recognition of the tax benefit or loss of
previously unrecognized tax loss

carryforwards associated with the unrealized holding gains and losses of available-for-sale securities to be recognized
in net income or net loss. This abstract required retrospective restatement of all prior periods beginning with
January 1, 2007. The adoption of EIC 172 resulted in a future income tax expense being recorded as part of the
Corporation’s Net Loss, whereas under SFAS 109 the future income tax expense would be recorded as part of the
Corporation’s Comprehensive Loss.

(f)In 2000, the carrying values of certain long-lived assets exceeded their respective undiscounted cash flows.
Following Canadian GAAP at that time, the carrying values were written down using the undiscounted cash flow
method. Under U.S. GAAP, the carrying values were written down to their fair values using the discounted cash
flow method, giving rise to a difference in the amounts written down. During 2007, the carrying values of certain
long-lived assets exceeded their respective discounted cash flows. Under Canadian GAAP, the carrying values
were written down using the discounted cash flow method. Under U.S. GAAP, a write-down was not required as
the carrying value of the asset was already written down to the fair-value using the discounted cash flows
during 2000. In 2008, the future consideration on the disposal of Amayapampa is designated as a financial asset
held for trading and is recorded at fair value.

The significant differences in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss relative to U.S. GAAP were:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS - UNAUDITED

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008

Cumulative
during

Exploration
Stage

Net earnings/(loss) – Canadian GAAP $(1,717 ) $(2,823 ) $293 $(6,994 ) $ (41,948 )
Exploration, property evaluation and holding
costs - continuing operations (a) (2,159 ) (3,678 ) (3,101 ) (8,060 ) (16,284 )
Exploration, property evaluation and holding
costs - discontinued operations (a) - - - - 4,016
Gain on sale of Amayapampa (f) - - - 2,124 2,124
Gain on repurchase of convertible notes (d) (122 ) - (122 ) - (122 )
Interest accretion on convertible notes (d) 251 262 776 577 1,613
Amortization of debt issuance costs (d) (69 ) (78 ) (202 ) (152 ) (427 )
Future income tax benefit/(expense) (e) (24 ) 114 757 207 (55 )
Financing costs - - - - (222 )
Stock-based compensation expense (c) - - - - 2,251
Beneficial conversion feature - - - - (2,774 )
      Net loss – U.S. GAAP (3,840 ) (6,203 ) (1,599 ) (12,298 ) (51,828 )
Unrealized gain on marketable securities 162 (758 ) (5,038 ) (1,382 ) (7,210 )
      Comprehensive loss – U.S. GAAP $(3,678 ) $(6,961 ) $(6,637 ) $(13,680 ) $ (59,038 )

 Basic and diluted loss per share – U.S. GAAP $(0.11 ) $(0.18 ) $(0.05 ) $(0.36 )
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The significant differences in the consolidated statements of cash flows relative to U.S. GAAP were:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - UNAUDITED

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Six Months Ended
September 30,

Cumulative
during

Exploration
2009 2008 2009 2008 Stage

Cash flows from operating activities,
Canadian GAAP $(964 ) $(1,706 ) $(5,189 ) $(4,985 ) $ (25,288 )
Additions to mineral properties, net (a) (2,126 ) (3,562 ) (3,033 ) (7,944 ) (17,809 )
   Cash flows from operating activities, U.S.
GAAP (3,090 ) (5,268 ) (8,222 ) (12,929 ) (43,097 )

Cash flows from investing activities,
Canadian GAAP (1,454 ) (3,342 ) 5,805 (24,650 ) (60,961 )
Additions to mineral properties, net (a) 2,126 3,562 3,033 7,944 17,809
   Cash flows from investing activities, U.S.
GAAP 672 220 8,838 (16,706 ) (43,152 )

Cash flows from financing activities,
Canadian GAAP 19,841 70 19,841 31,470 142,568
    Cash flows from financing activities, U.S.
GAAP 19,841 70 19,841 31,470 142,568

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents - continuing operations 17,423 (4,978 ) 20,457 1,835 56,319
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents - discontinued operations - - - (294 ) (23,270 )
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 17,423 (4,978 ) 20,457 1,541 33,049

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
period 16,300 23,205 13,266 16,686 674

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $33,723 $18,227 $33,723 $18,227 $ 33,723

- 13 -
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The significant differences in the consolidated balance sheets as at September 30, 2009, and December 31, 2008,
relative to U.S. GAAP were:

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - UNAUDITED

September 30, 2009 December 31, 2008
Per Cdn.
GAAP

Cdn./U.S.
Adj.

Per U.S.
GAAP

Per Cdn.
GAAP

Cdn./U.S.
Adj.

Per U.S.
GAAP

Current assets $35,114 - $35,114 $22,012 $- $22,012
Property, plant and equipment
(a) 54,339 (24,333 ) 30,006 48,940 (20,433 ) 28,507
Other assets 4,813 - 4,813 4,813 - 4,813
   Total assets $94,266 $(24,333 ) $69,933 $75,765 $(20,433 ) $55,332

Current liabilities 1,518 - 1,518 803 - 803
Convertible notes (d) 24,237 3,444 27,681 23,496 4,995 28,491
Other long-term liabilities 228 - 228 228 - 228
   Total liabilities 25,983 3,444 29,427 24,527 4,995 29,522

Capital stock (b,c) 245,646 75,282 320,928 225,098 75,282 300,380
Special warrants - 222 222 - 222 222
Warrants and options (c) 5,524 (85 ) 5,439 4,970 (304 ) 4,666
Contributed surplus (b,c) 1,620 5,046 6,666 1,387 5,265 6,652
Equity component of
convertible notes (d) 5,998 (5,998 ) - 6,298 (6,298 ) -
Other comprehensive income
(e) 319 144 463 4,602 901 5,503
Deficit (a,b,c,e,) (190,824 ) (102,388 ) (293,212 ) (191,117 ) (100,496 ) (291,613 )
   Total shareholders' equity 68,283 (27,777 ) 40,506 51,238 (25,428 ) 25,810

  Total liabilities &
shareholders' equity $94,266 $(24,333 ) $69,933 $75,765 $(20,433 ) $55,332

In May 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 165, “Subsequent Events”.  The new statement is intended to establish
general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial
statements are issued or are available to be issued. This standard requires the disclosure of the date through which an
entity has evaluated subsequent events and the basis for selecting that date, that is, whether that date represents the
date the financial statements were issued or were available to be issued.  This statement became effective for the
Corporation on September 30, 2009.  The Corporation reviewed events for inclusion in the financial statements
through November 5, 2009, the date that the accompanying financial statements were issued.
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In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 157-4, “Determining Fair Value When the Volume
and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are
Not Orderly”.  This FSP provides additional guidance in determining when observable transaction prices or quoted
prices in markets that have become less active require significant adjustment to estimate fair value.  This FSP became
effective for the Corporation on September 30, 2009.  The Corporation has determined this FSP had no impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”. The new standard is intended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hedging
activities by requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investors to better understand their effects on an entity’s
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. It is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The Corporation has
determined this standard had no impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” which amends SFAS
No. 157 by delaying its effective date by one year for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except for
items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. Therefore, the
application of SFAS No. 157 relating to our non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities was adopted
prospectively beginning January 1, 2009. See Note 12 — Financial
Instruments for additional information.  The Corporation has determined this FSP had no impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements”.
SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and
for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary (minority interest) is an
ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and separate from the parent company’s equity. Among other requirements, this standard requires
consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the
noncontrolling interest. It also requires disclosure, on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Loss, of the amounts
of consolidated net loss attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest. This statement became effective
for the Corporation on January 1, 2009. As of September 30, 2009, the Corporation did not have any minority
interests.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141(R)”).
SFAS No. 141(r) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial
statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
goodwill acquired. SFAS No. 141(r) also establishes disclosure requirements to enable the evaluation of the nature
and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141(r) is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. The Corporation had no business combinations during the quarter ended September 30, 2009;
therefore this standard had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.

16.           Related party transactions

On April 1, 2009, the Corporation entered into an agreement with Sierra Partners LLC (“Sierra”) to provide investor
relations and corporate finance consulting services to the Corporation.  The founder and partner of Sierra is also a
director of the Corporation. Under the terms of the agreement, Sierra will provide consulting services to the
Corporation commencing April 1, 2009 and ending on March 31, 2010.  Sierra will assist with the Corporation’s
efforts to maintain an Investor Relations program and provide support and analysis of the Corporation’s general
corporate finance and strategy efforts.  As compensation for these services, the Corporation agreed to pay to Sierra a
monthly retainer fee of $10,000 during the term and issue to Sierra 60,000 of the Corporation’s stock options.  As of
September 30, 2009, the Corporation had made payments totaling $60,000 and had issued the 60,000 stock options
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with a recorded expense of $30,363.

17.           Subsequent events

Receipt of Temporary Occupation Permits for Paredones Amarillos Gold Project

On October 28, 2009, the Corporation announced that Minera Paredones Amarillos S.A. de C.V. (“MPA”), the
Corporation’s wholly-owned Mexican subsidiary, has received the Temporary Occupation Permits for the Paredones
Amarillos gold project located in Baja California Sur, Mexico.

The Temporary Occupation Permits (one for each of the seven mining concessions that cover the area of the
Paredones Amarillos gold project) formally grant MPA the right to use the surface land in the project area owned by
the Mexican federal government.  With the Temporary Occupation Permits received, the Corporation has all of the
documents necessary to file its application for the Change of Forest Land Use Permit which is required before the
Corporation can commence development of the Paredones Amarillos gold project.

- 14 -
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ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of the consolidated operating results and financial condition of Vista
Gold Corp. (“Vista,” “Vista Gold” or the “Corporation”) for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2009
have been prepared based on information available to us as of November 9, 2009.  This MD&A should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Vista Gold for the three years ended December 31, 2008 and
the related notes thereto, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) in Canada.  Reference to Note 19 to the consolidated annual financial statements and Note 15 to the
consolidated interim financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2009 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”), should be made for a discussion of differences between Canadian and United States GAAP and their
effect on the financial statements.  All amounts stated herein are in U.S. dollars in thousands (000’s), except per share,
per ounce amounts and number of shares, unless otherwise noted.

Results from Operations

Our consolidated net loss for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009, was $1,717 or $0.05 per share
compared to a consolidated net loss of $2,823 or $0.08 per share for the same period in 2008.  Our consolidated net
earnings for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, was $293 or $0.01 per share compared to a
consolidated net loss of $6,994 or $0.20 per share for the same period in 2008.  For the three-month period, the
decrease in the consolidated net loss of $1,106 from the prior period is primarily due to a gain of $537 on the
repurchase of convertible notes.  On July 14, 2009, we repurchased $1.333 million of our convertible notes for $866,
which resulted in a gain.  Also contributing to the decrease in the consolidated net loss for the three-month period was
an increase in the gain on currency translation of $256 and a decrease in corporate administration and investor
relations of $419; these amounts were partially offset by an increase in exploration, property evaluation and holding
costs of $167.  The increase in the consolidated net earnings of $7,287 for the nine-month period from the prior year
period is largely due to a gain on disposal of marketable securities of $6,829. The gain was the result of the sale of our
Allied Nevada Gold Corp. (“Allied”) shares which we retained in connection with the transaction that resulted in the
formation of Allied and the transfer of Vista’s Nevada properties to Allied.  Also contributing to this increase was the
gain on the repurchase of convertible notes of $537, a decrease in corporate administration and investor relations of
$974 and an increase in the gain on currency translation of $295.  These increases have been partially offset by an
increase in exploration, evaluation and holding costs of $272, an increase in the future income tax expense of $550, an
increase in the write-down of marketable securities of $123 and a decrease in interest income of $352.

Exploration, property evaluation and holding costs

Exploration, property evaluation and holding costs were $412 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009
and $1,014 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, as compared with $245 and $742 for the same
periods in 2008. For both the three-month and nine-month periods, there were no significant variances as we continue
to move our projects towards development decisions.

Corporate administration and investor relations

Corporate administration and investor relations costs decreased to $1,320 during the three-month period ended
September 30, 2009, compared with $1,739 for the same period in 2008.  The decrease of $419 from the respective
prior period is primarily due to the following:

•Stock-based compensation expense decreased by $359 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009.  This
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in the number of options granted during the prior year and vesting over time
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as well as an increase in the stock-based compensation amount being capitalized as mineral properties.
• Legal costs decreased by $64 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009.

Corporate administration and investor relations costs decreased to $3,305 for the nine-month period ended September
30, 2009 compared with $4,279 for the same period in 2008.  The decrease of $974 from the respective prior period is
primarily due to the following:

•Stock-based compensation expense decreased by $723 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009.  This
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in the stock-based compensation expense for new grants, a decrease in the
number of options granted during the year and an increase in the stock-based compensation amount being
capitalized as mineral properties.

•Securities and compliance fees expense decreased by $100 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009.
•Audit, tax and Sarbanes-Oxley compliance fees decreased by $132 for the nine-month period ended September 30,

2009 as we work with our auditors and outside consultants to reduce these fees.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense increased to $66 during the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 and
$180 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, compared with $44 and $123 for the same periods in
2008.  The increases of $22 and $57 from the respective prior periods are mostly due to an increase in capital
equipment at the Mt. Todd gold project and the Paredones gold project that has begun to be depreciated.

Interest expense

Interest expense of $560 during the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 was less than $617 for the same
period in 2008.  This decrease is due to the repurchase of certain convertible notes during the period (see “Consolidated
Financial Statements – Note 7”.) Interest expense increased to $1,723 for the nine-month period ended September 30,
2009, as compared with $1,386 for the same period in 2008.  This increase is because the senior secured convertible
notes (the “Notes”) were issued on March 4, 2008 and therefore only 118 days of interest were recorded for the 2008
period.  For the three-month period ended September 30, 2009, $252 is attributable to the accretion of the debt
discount and $308 is attributable to interest expense.  For the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, $775 is
attributable to the accretion of the debt discount and $948 is attributable to interest expense.  These amounts are
approximately 43% of the full interest expense associated with the issuance of the Notes.  We capitalized the
remaining 57% as additions to mineral properties in accordance with SFAS No. 34 and our accounting policy.

- 15 -
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Other income and expense

Gain/(loss) on disposal of marketable securities

For the three-month period ended September 30, 2009, we realized a gain of $14 on the disposal of marketable
securities.  There were no gains or losses for the same period in 2008. The gain for the three-month period in 2009
resulted from the sale of securities that had a book value of $6.

For the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, we realized a gain of $6,829 on the disposal of marketable
securities as compared to a loss on the disposal of marketable securities of $67 for the same period in 2008.  The gain
of $6,829 was mostly the result of our sale on April 3, 2009, of all 1,529,848 common shares of Allied Nevada Gold
Corp. for $9,016.  These shares had a book value of $2,194.

At September 30, 2009, we held marketable securities available for sale with a quoted market value of $791.  We
purchased the securities for investing purposes with the intent to hold the securities until such time it would be
advantageous to sell the securities at a gain. Although there can be no reasonable assurance that a gain will be realized
from the sale of the securities, we monitor the market status of the securities consistently in order to mitigate the risk
of loss on the investment.

Gain on repurchase of convertible notes

On July 14, 2009, Vista entered into Note Repurchase Agreements (the “Whitebox Repurchase Agreements”) with
Whitebox Combined Partners, LP (“Whitebox Combined Partners”), Whitebox Convertible Arbitrage Partners, LP
(“Whitebox Convertible Arbitrage”) and Whitebox Special Opportunities Fund Series B Partners, LP (“Whitebox Special
Opportunities”) whereby the Corporation agreed to repurchase their respective Notes.

Pursuant to the Whitebox Repurchase Agreements, the Corporation agreed to repurchase Notes (i) in the principal
amount of $504,000 from Whitebox Combined Partners for an aggregate purchase price, including interest, of
$331,800; (ii) in the principal amount of $510,000 from Whitebox Convertible Arbitrage for an aggregate purchase
price, including interest, of $335,750; and (iii) in the principal amount of $319,000 from Whitebox Special
Opportunities for an aggregate purchase price, including interest, of $210,008, based on a settlement date of July 14,
2009. The Corporation allocated the consideration paid on the repurchase of the convertible notes to the liability and
equity elements of the security based on their relative fair values at the date of the transaction.  A gain of $537,000
was recorded in the Corporation’s Consolidated Statement of Earnings and (Loss) as a result of the convertible notes
repurchase.  There were no similar transactions during the 2008 periods.

The Whitebox Repurchase Agreements were initiated by Whitebox Advisors LLC and were not the result of any
solicitation by or on behalf of the Corporation. The Corporation has not initiated any broader effort to repurchase or
restructure any of its remaining Notes and did not act upon the basis of material non-public information in
determining to enter into the Whitebox Repurchase Agreements.

Interest income

Interest income decreased to $16 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 and $65 for the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2009 as compared with $137 and $417 for the same periods in 2008.  The decreases of
$121 and $352 from the respective prior periods are due falling interest rates in the market.

Future income tax (benefit)/expense
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During the three-month period ended September 30, 2009, the future income tax benefit was $24 compared to a future
income tax expense of $114 for the 2008 period.  During the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, the future
income tax expense was $757 compared with $207 for the same period in 2008.  The increase in the future tax benefit
for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 as compared to the 2008 period is the result of an increase in the
unrealized holding gain on marketable securities which created a future tax benefit for the 2009 period as compared to
an unrealized holding loss that created a tax expense for the 2008 period.   For the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2009, the increase in the future income tax expense as compared to the prior periods is mostly the
result of the sale of the Allied Nevada Gold Corp. shares on April 3, 2009.  In previous periods a future income tax
benefit was recorded in respect of previously unrecognized tax loss carry forwards as these losses were expected to
cover any taxable gains that would arise as a result of the increase in value of the marketable securities. When these
securities were disposed of, the unrealized gains were transferred from other comprehensive income/(loss) to net
earnings. Since no taxable gain arose on this disposal, an income tax expense was recorded in the current period to
reverse the benefit recorded in prior periods. The net impact is such that no tax is payable on this disposal and
accordingly the cumulative tax expense recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and (Loss) reflects the tax
benefit associated with Vista’s remaining marketable securities.

- 16 -
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Financial Position, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash used in operations

Net cash used in operating activities was $964 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009, compared to
$1,706 for the same period in 2008.  The decrease of $742 is mostly the result of a decrease in cash used for accounts
payable, accrued liabilities and other of $588, a decrease in cash used for prepaids and other of $178, which was offset
by an increase in cash used for accounts receivable of $37 and an increase in interest paid on our convertible notes of
$11.

Net cash used in operating activities was $5,189 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, compared to
$4,985 for the same period in 2008.  The increase of $204 is mostly the result of the increase in interest paid of $669
on the Notes.  The Notes were issued on March 4, 2008 and therefore only 72 days of interest had accrued as of
June 15, 2008, the date at which interest is paid.  Other variances include a decrease in cash received from accounts
receivable of $93, a decrease in cash used for prepaids and other of $229, a decrease in cash used for accounts
payable, accrued liabilities and other of $240 as well as an overall decrease in non-cash items of $7,800 which was
offset by a decrease in the net loss of $6,993.

Investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities decreased to $1,454 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009, as
compared to $3,342 for the same period in 2008.  The decrease in cash used in investing activities of $1,888 is due to
the following:

•A decrease in cash used for additions to mineral properties of $1,742.  During the 2008 period we undertook a
drilling program at the Mt. Todd gold mine and were in the process of completing a feasibility study for the
Paredones Amarillos gold project.  These projects were completed during 2008.

•A decrease in cash received from short-term loans of $350.  In connection with the sale of our Amayapampa gold
project in April 2008 (see Consolidation Financial Statements — Note 3) we loaned to Republic $350 to cover
ongoing expenses at the Amayapampa gold project.  They repaid this amount during the three-month period ended
September 30, 2008.

Net cash provided by investing activities increased to $5,805 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, as
compared to net cash used in investing activities of $24,650 for the same period in 2008.  The increase in cash
provided by investing activities of $30,455 is mostly the result of the following:

•A decrease in the additions to plant and equipment of $16,746. During 2008, we completed a brokered private
placement of $30,000 principal amount of Notes (see Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 7) and used $16,000
of the proceeds towards the purchase of gold processing equipment to be used at our Paredones Amarillos project,
which included the costs of relocating the equipment to Edmonton, Alberta, Canada.  There was no similar purchase
during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009.

•A decrease in the acquisition of mineral property of $452.  On January 24, 2008, we completed the acquisition of
interests in various mineral properties adjacent to our Guadalupe de los Reyes project in Mexico.  The consideration
paid by Vista for the acquisition of these interests included cash payments totaling $452.  There was no similar
purchase during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009.

•An increase in the proceeds from the sale of marketable securities of $8,966.  On April 3, 2009, we sold all
1,529,848 common shares of Allied Nevada Gold Corp. we held $9,016.

•An increase in the proceeds received upon the disposal of mineral property.  In June 2009, we sold most of the
remaining patented mining claims in Colorado for $188.  There were no similar transactions during the 2008 period.
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•A decrease in cash used for additions to mineral properties of $3,986.  During the 2008 period, we undertook a
drilling program at the Mt. Todd gold mine and were in the process of completing a feasibility study for the
Paredones Amarillos gold project.  These projects were completed during 2008.

Financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $19,841 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2009, as
compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $70 for the same period in 2008.  This increase is the result of
the completion of a public offering on September 21, 2009 and the completion of the over-allotment on September 25,
2009 in which we offered and sold an aggregate 10.12 million common shares (see Consolidated Financial Statements
– Note 8).  Proceeds to Vista after commission and other fees were $20.7 million.  There were no similar transactions
during the three-month period in 2008.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $19,841 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, as
compared to $31,470 for the same period in 2008.  This decrease is primarily the result of the completion of the public
offering and over-allotment as discussed during the three-month period as compared to the completion of a brokered
private placement on March 4, 2008 in which we offered and sold $30,000 in aggregate principal amount of senior
secured convertible notes (the “Notes”) (see Consolidated Financial Statements – Note 7).  Proceeds to Vista after legal
and other fees were $28,390.

There were no warrant exercises or exercises of stock options during the three-month period ended September 30,
2009 as compared to stock option exercises of $70 during the 2008 period.  There were no warrant exercises during
the three-month period in 2008.

There were no warrant exercises or exercises of stock options during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009
as compared to stock option exercises of $139 and warrant exercises of $2,941 during the 2008 period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At September 30, 2009, our total assets were $94,266 compared to $75,765 at December 31, 2008, representing an
increase of $18,501.  At September 30, 2009, we had working capital of $33,596 compared to $21,209 at
December 31, 2008, representing an increase of $12,387.  This increase relates primarily to an increase in our cash
balance from year end as a result of our public offering and the over-allotment during September 2009 (see
Consolidated Financial Statements – Note 8).

The principal component of working capital at both September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, is cash and cash
equivalents of $33,723 and $13,266, respectively.  Other components include marketable securities (September 30,
2009 — $791; December 31, 2008 — $8,153) and other liquid assets (September 30, 2009 - $600; December 31, 2008 -
$593).

As a result of the delay in the issuance of the Change of Forest Land Use Permit at the Paredones Amarillos project
and the current uncertainty in the resource and financial markets, management has adopted a revised plan and budget
for the year 2009. The plan continues those programs necessary to expedite the development of the Paredones
Amarillos project, while minimizing expenditures in other areas. We expect that in the event that financing for the
Paredones Amarillos project is not available on acceptable terms in 2009, Vista has sufficient working capital to fund
its planned operations at least through the end of 2010, without additional financing. We will continue to examine
potential funding alternatives for the project, which may include project financing, debt financing or equity financing.

On September 21, 2009, we announced the closing of our previously announced public offering of common shares.
The Corporation sold to Dahlman Rose & Company and Wellington West Capital Markets, as underwriters, 8.8
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million common shares at a price of $2.25 per common share. The Corporation granted the underwriters a 30-day
option to purchase up to 1.32 million additional common shares to cover over-allotments, if any.

On September 25, 2009, we announced the closing of the sale of 1.32 million common shares, pursuant to the
underwriters' exercise of the over-allotment option, which Vista granted in connection with its public offering of
common shares.  Consistent with the public offering of common shares that closed on September 21, 2009, the 1.32
million common shares were sold to Dahlman Rose & Company LLC and Wellington West Capital Markets, as
underwriters, at the public offering price of $2.25 per common share.  The over-allotment and the public offering were
made pursuant to Vista’s shelf registration statement filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) and a shelf prospectus filed with certain Canadian securities regulatory authorities.  With the sale of the
additional 1.32 million common shares to the underwriters, 10.12 million common shares in total were sold in
connection with the offering.

Proceeds to the Corporation from the offering, net of commissions and expenses, were approximately $20.5 million,
which includes net proceeds of approximately $2.7 million from the sale of the 1.32 million common shares pursuant
to the underwriters’ exercise of the over-allotment option.

Vista intends to use the net proceeds from the offering (i) to fund drilling, exploration, and engineering/technical
activities (including the preparation of a feasibility study) on its Mt. Todd gold project, (ii) to fund the engineering,
design and other technical activities to
advance its Paredones Amarillos gold project, (iii) to fund exploration activities and if warranted, drilling programs at
its Guadalupe
de los Reyes gold project and (iv) to fund acquisitions, and further development of acquired mineral properties,
working capital requirements and/or for other general corporate purposes.

There has been a severe deterioration in global credit and equity markets.  This has resulted in the need for
government intervention in major banks, financial institutions and insurers and has also resulted in greater volatility,
increased credit losses and tighter credit conditions.  These disruptions in the current credit and financial markets have
had a significant material adverse impact on a number of financial institutions and have limited access to capital and
credit for many companies. These disruptions could, among other things, make it more difficult for us to obtain, or
increase our cost of obtaining, capital and financing for our operations.    In September, we completed a financing for
net proceeds of $20.5 million.  Management expects that the proceeds from this offering will be sufficient to meet our
expenditures for corporate administration and day to day operations for the next 16 months and does not expect that
we will require additional financing for such purposes during that time.  However, we do expect to seek project
financing for our Paredones Amarillos gold project in the next three to six months.  Further, if our capital costs exceed
management’s expectations or new project opportunities become available and desirable to us, we may need to access
additional capital.  Further, our access to additional capital may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements required to be disclosed in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Contractual Obligations

Payments due by period (in thousands)

Contractual Obligations Total
Less than

1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years
More than

5 years
Long-term debt obligations(1) $33,580 $2,867 $30,713 $— $—
Purchase obligations(2) $300 $100 $200 $— $—
Operating lease obligations $42 $42 $— $— $—
Total $34,022 $3,109 $30,913 $— $—

(1)Long-term debt obligations including interest payments related to the Corporation’s issuance of the Notes, are
discussed in the Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 7.

(2)Purchase obligations include option payments totaling $300 Long Valley project.  We still have outstanding $300,
of which $100 is to be paid in less than a year and $200 is to be paid in 1 to 3 years.

Transactions with Related Parties

On April 1, 2009, the Corporation entered into an agreement with Sierra Partners LLC (“Sierra”) to provide investor
relations and corporate finance consulting services to the Corporation.  The founder and partner of Sierra is also a
director of the Corporation. Under the terms of the agreement, Sierra will provide consulting services to the
Corporation commencing April 1, 2009 and ending on March 31, 2010.  Sierra will assist with the Corporation’s
efforts to maintain an Investor Relations program and provide support and analysis of the Corporation’s general
corporate finance and strategy efforts.  As compensation for these services, the Corporation agreed to pay to Sierra a
monthly retainer fee of $10,000 during the term and issue to Sierra 60,000 of the Corporation’s stock options.  As of
September 30, 2009, the Corporation had made payments totaling $60,000 and had issued the 60,000 stock options
with a recorded expense of $30,363.

Project updates

Mt. Todd Gold Project Metallurgical Test Results

On August 26, 2009, we announced the updated results of metallurgical tests completed for the Mt. Todd gold
project.  As part of the on-going engineering studies on the development of the Mt. Todd gold project, Resource
Development, Inc. (“RDi”) of Wheat Ridge, Colorado, JKTech Pty Ltd (“JKTech”) of Queensland, Australia, and
Ausenco Services Pty Ltd (“Ausenco”) of Perth, Australia, recently completed additional successful metallurgical test
programs and simulations.  The metallurgical tests were conducted on core from the 2008 Mt. Todd drilling program
that is believed to be representative of approximately 80% of the ore contained in the pit shape identified in Vista’s
May 2009 preliminary economic assessment (please refer to Vista’s press release dated June 4, 2009).

The RDi test work confirms a gold recovery of 82% in a whole ore leach circuit with ore that has been ground to a
relatively coarse size of 80% passing 100 mesh.  JKTech completed testing to determine ore grinding characteristics
for both conventional crushing/grinding as well as crushing with high pressure grinding rolls (“HPGR”) followed by
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grinding.  The results of the JKTech testing together with other information were used by Ausenco in a comminution
circuit simulation.  The work by Ausenco confirmed earlier test work completed by Vista, and indicated energy and
operating cost savings may be realized by utilizing HPGR technology for processing the Mt. Todd ore. The results of
these studies and simulations will be incorporated into a preliminary feasibility study which Vista expects to complete
by the end of the fourth quarter of this year.

Deepak Malhotra, PhD, an independent "qualified person" with in the meaning of National Instrument 43-101 -
Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects ("NI 43-101") who supervised the preprations of the scientific and
technical information regarding the Mt. Todd metallurgical results included in this Form 10-Q.

Paredones Amarillos Gold Project Feasibility Study Update Results and Project Update

On September 2, 2009, we announced the results of a feasibility study update (the “Updated Study”) completed by SRK
Consulting (U.S.), Inc. (“SRK”) of Lakewood, Colorado, on our Paredones Amarillos gold project.

During the past four months prior to this announcement, Vista undertook a detailed review of its Paredones Amarillos
gold project.  The Roberts & Schaefer Company, a large engineering firm based in Salt Lake City, Utah, reviewed the
process facility design to optimize the process area layout, confirmed the proposed production parameters and
constructability, and re-estimated the capital and operating costs for the process area. The re-estimated capital and
operating costs were incorporated in the Updated Study of the project, which supersedes the economic evaluation
reported in the Vista’s September 8, 2008 press release, in connection with the feasibility study of the Paredones
Amarillos gold project (the “Feasibility Study”) and the related technical report entitled “Feasibility Study NI 43-101
Technical Report Vista Gold Corp. Paredones Amarillos Gold Project Baja California Sur, Mexico” dated October 20,
2008.  For more information on the Updated Study, please refer to the technical report entitled "Feasibility Study
Update, NI 43-101 Technical Report, Vista Gold Corp., Paredones Amarillos Gold Project, Baja California Sur,
Mexico" dated September 1, 2009 prepared by SRK that is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Other cost estimates for the proposed project were reviewed and updated by SRK and incorporated into the Updated
Study to reflect current estimated capital and operating cost inputs and commodity prices.  The Updated Study
estimates a decrease in capital and operating costs and improved project economics.  The mineral resources, mineral
reserves, mine life and stripping ratios reported in the Feasibility Study remain unchanged.  The highlights from the
Updated Study compared to the Feasibility Study results are shown in the following table:

Selected Operating, Cost and Return Estimates
Life-of-Mine Gold Production 1,203,000 ounces
Average Annual Gold Production 127,400 ounces per year

(142,900 ounces per year for the first five years)
Feasibility Study Updated Study

Pre-Production Capital Costs
    Total $197.2 million $189.8 million
    $ per ounce gold produced $165 $155
Cash Operating Costs
    ($ per ounce gold produced)
    Life-of-Mine Average $419 $406
    Average for First Five Years $380 $372
Financial Analysis
    Average Gold Price $771 per oz.1 $771 per oz.1 $950 per oz.2
    Payback Period 3.4 years 2.9 years 2.3 years
    NPV at  5% Discount  Rate
(pre-tax)

$128.9 million $150.0 million $303.9 million

    Internal Rate of Return 21.0 % pre-tax 24.7 % pre-tax 37.8 % pre-tax
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16.6 % after-tax 19.6 % after-tax 31.0 % after-tax
1) Feasibility Study Base Case Gold Price Profile ($850 for 1st 3 years, $725 thereafter)   2) $950 gold price
demonstrates upside at current gold prices

Terry Braun, P.E. of SRK, an independent "qualified person" as defined by NI 43-101 supervised the preparation of
the scientific and technical information regarding the Updated Study included in this Form 10-Q.
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Updated Mineral Resources for the Guadalupe de los Reyes Gold Project

On September 3, 2009, we announced updated mineral resources for the Guadalupe de los Reyes gold project.

In January 2008, Vista consolidated the Guadalupe de los Reyes District by acquiring the interests of Grandcru
Resources Corporation in the district.  In July 2009, Vista retained Pincock, Allen & Holt (“PAH”) of Lakewood,
Colorado, to complete a mineral resource estimation for the district.  The mineral resource estimate found in the
following table has been adjusted to reflect material removed from old underground workings.

Guadalupe de los Reyes Project Mineral Resource Estimates
(0.50 g/t Cutoff)

Metric Tonnes Gold Grade
(g/t)

Contained Gold
Ounces

Silver Grade
(g/t)

Contained Silver
Ounces

Indicated 10,048,000 1.50 484,000 25.74 8,313,900
Inferred 4,888,000 2.02 316,800 59.98 9,425,500

The updated gold resource estimate was completed on August 12, 2009, by PAH, pursuant to Canadian National
Instrument 43-101 (“NI 43-101”).  This updated gold resource estimate was completed utilizing standard industry
software and resource estimation methodology.  Mr. López is the independent "qualified person", as defined by NI
43-101, who supervised the preparation of the scientific and technical information regarding the updated mineral
resource estimate for the Guadalupe de los Reyes gold project included in this Form 10-Q.

For more information, please refer to the technical report entitled "Technical Report for the Guadalupe de los Reyes
Gold-Silver Project, Sinaloa, Mexico" dated August 12, 2009 that is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors Regarding Reserve and Resource Estimates

The terms “mineral reserve”, “proven mineral reserve” and “probable mineral reserve” are Canadian mining terms as defined
in accordance with NI 43-101 and the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (the “CIM”)—CIM
Definition Standards on Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves, adopted by the CIM Council, as amended. These
definitions differ from the definitions in the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Industry Guide
7 (“SEC Industry Guide 7”) under the Securities Act. Under SEC Industry Guide 7 standards, a “final” or “bankable”
feasibility study is required to report reserves, the three-year historical average price is used in any reserve or cash
flow analysis to designate reserves and the primary environmental analysis or report must be filed with the appropriate
governmental authority.

In addition, the terms “mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource” and “inferred mineral
resource” are defined in and required to be disclosed by NI 43-101; however, these terms are not defined terms under
SEC Industry Guide 7 and are normally not permitted to be used in reports and registration statements filed with the
SEC. Investors are cautioned not to assume that any part or all of mineral deposits in these categories will ever be
converted into reserves. “Inferred mineral resources” have a great amount of uncertainty as to their existence, and great
uncertainty as to their economic and legal feasibility. It cannot be assumed
that all, or any part, of an inferred mineral resource will ever be upgraded to a higher category. Under Canadian rules,
estimates of inferred mineral resources may not form the basis of feasibility or pre-feasibility studies, except in rare
cases. Investors are cautioned not to assume that all or any part of an inferred mineral resource exists or is
economically or legally mineable. Disclosure of “contained ounces” in a resource is permitted disclosure under
Canadian regulations; however, the SEC normally only permits issuers to report mineralization that does not
constitute “reserves” by SEC standards as in place tonnage and grade without reference to unit measures.
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Accordingly, information contained in this report and the documents incorporated by reference herein contain
descriptions of our mineral deposits that may not be comparable to similar information made public by
U.S. companies subject to the reporting and disclosure requirements under the United States federal securities laws
and the rules and regulations thereunder.

Cautionary Note to All Investors Concerning Economic Assessments That Include Inferred Resources

Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves have no demonstrated economic viability.  The preliminary assessment
on the Mt. Todd gold project is preliminary in nature and includes “inferred mineral resources” that are considered too
speculative geologically to have economic considerations applied to them that would enable them to be categorized as
mineral reserves.  There is no certainty that the preliminary assessment at the Mt. Todd gold project will ever be
realized.

Confirmatory Drilling Program at Paredones Amarillos Gold Project and Update on Permitting Progress

On August 4, 2009, Vista announced that it would be initiating a diamond drilling program at the Paredones Amarillos
gold project, located in Baja California Sur, Mexico.  The program of diamond drill holes is designed to obtain
samples to confirm process plant design criteria and provide additional validation of the mineral reserve model used
for the feasibility study completed in September 2008 and announced in a press release dated September 8,
2008.  Vista received the final authorization to proceed with the
drilling program on Friday, July 31, 2009, and mobilized the drilling contractor. Vista completed the drilling program
as anticipated.  Vista expects to drill one more hole for hydro-geological testwork.  Vists expects to complete the
evaluation of the results later in the fourth quarter.

Vista’s advisors and management have been working with Mexican authorities to expedite the permitting process at the
Paredones Amarillos gold project. Vista was informed on October 28, 2009 that it had received the TOP (see “–
Subsequent events – Receipt of Temporary Occupation Permits for Paredones Amarillos Gold Project” below).  Vista
has already prepared the Change of Forest Land Use Permit application and obtained the environmental permit
necessary to submit the application. Vista intends to submit the Change of Forest Land Use Permit application in the
upcoming days.

Subsequent events

Receipt of Temporary Occupation Permits for Paredones Amarillos Gold Project

On October 28, 2009, we announced that Minera Paredones Amarillos S.A. de C.V. (“MPA”), our wholly-owned
Mexican subsidiary, has received the Temporary Occupation Permits for the Paredones Amarillos gold project located
in Baja California Sur, Mexico.

The Temporary Occupation Permits (one for each of the seven mining concessions that cover the area of the
Paredones Amarillos gold project) formally grant MPA the right to use the surface land in the project area owned by
the Mexican federal government.  With the Temporary Occupation Permits received, we have all of the documents
necessary to file its application for the Change of Forest Land Use Permit (“CFLUP”) which is required before we can
commence development of the Paredones Amarillos gold project.  We intend to file the CFLUP application in the
upcoming days.
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Changes in Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Changes in accounting policies

Effective January 1, 2009, we adopted the following standards updates by the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (“CICA”).  These new standards have been adopted on a prospective basis with no restatement to prior
period financial statements.

In February 2008, the CICA issued Section 3064, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, which replaces Section 3062,
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets,” and results in a withdrawal of CICA Section 3450, “Research and Development Costs,”
and amendments to Accounting Guideline (AcG) 11, “Enterprises in the Development Stage,” and CICA Section 1000,
“Financial Statement Concepts.” The standard intends to reduce the differences with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) in the accounting for intangible assets and results in closer alignment with U.S. GAAP. Under
current Canadian standards, more items are recognized as assets than under IFRS or U.S. GAAP. The objectives of
CICA Section 3064 are to reinforce the principle-based approach to the recognition of assets only in accordance with
the definition of an asset and the criteria for asset recognition The standard will also provide guidance for the
recognition of internally developed intangible assets (including research and development activities),
ensuring consistent treatment of all intangible assets, whether separately acquired or internally developed.  This
standard will be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2008. The Corporation has determined there
is no impact on its current financial statements.

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

NOTICE PURSUANT TO IRS CIRCULAR 230: NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS SUMMARY CONCERNING
ANY U.S. FEDERAL TAX ISSUE IS INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND IT CANNOT BE USED,
BY A U.S. HOLDER (AS DEFINED IN MATERIAL REFERENCED BELOW), FOR THE PURPOSE OF
AVOIDING U.S. FEDERAL TAX PENALTIES UNDER THE CODE (AS DEFINED BELOW). THIS SUMMARY
WAS WRITTEN TO SUPPORT THE PROMOTION OR MARKETING OF THE TRANSACTIONS OR
MATTERS ADDRESSED BY THIS DOCUMENT. EACH U.S. HOLDER SHOULD SEEK U.S. FEDERAL TAX
ADVICE, BASED ON SUCH U.S. HOLDER’S PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES, FROM AN INDEPENDENT
TAX ADVISOR.

Vista has been a “passive foreign investment company” (“PFIC”) as defined under Section 1297 of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), in recent years and expects to continue to be a PFIC in the
future.  Current and prospective United States shareholders should consult their tax advisors as to the tax
consequences of PFIC classification and the U.S. federal tax treatment of PFICs.  Additional information on this
matter is included in Vista’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008, as amended, under “Part II.  Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities — U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences”.
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Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This document and any document (or portion thereof) incorporated by reference into this document, contain
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
21E of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and forward-looking information under Canadian
securities laws, that are intended to be covered by the safe harbor created by such legislation.   All statements, other
than statements of historical facts, included in this document, our other filings with the SEC and Canadian securities
regulatory authorities and in press releases and public statements by our officers or representatives, that address
activities, events or developments that we expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future are forward-looking
statements and forward-looking information, including, but not limited to, such things as those listed below:

• estimates of future operating and financial performance;

• potential funding requirements and sources of capital;

• the timing, performance and results of feasibility studies;

• timing and receipt of required land use, environmental and other permits for the Paredones Amarillos gold project
and timing for completion of drilling and testing programs at the Paredones Amarillos gold project;

• results of the drilling program and other test results at the Paredones Amarillos gold project

• timing and outcome for the CFLUP for the Paredones Amarillos gold project;

•plans to purchase remaining surface land or obtain rights-of-way required by the Paredones Amarillos gold project;

•capital and operating cost estimates for the Paredones Amarillos gold project, and anticipated timing of
commencement of construction at the Paredones Amarillos gold project;

• plans for evaluation of the Mt. Todd gold project;

• preliminary assessment results and plans for a preliminary feasibility study at the Mt. Todd gold project;

•production estimates and timing for gold production at the Paredones Amarillos gold project and the Mt. Todd
gold project;

• potential for gold production at the Amayapampa gold project, timing and receipt of future payments in
connection with the disposal of the Amayapampa gold project and status of legal proceedings in Bolivia;

• ongoing debt service requirements for the Notes and potential redemption or conversion of the Notes;

• future gold prices;

• future business strategy, competitive strengths, goals and expansion and growth of our business;

• Vista’s potential status as a producer;

•plans and estimates concerning potential project development, including matters such as schedules, estimated
completion dates and estimated capital and operating costs;
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• plans and proposed timetables for exploration programs and estimates of exploration expenditures;

• estimates of mineral reserves and mineral resources;

• potential joint venture and partnership strategies in relation to our properties; and

• future share price and valuation for Vista and for marketable securities held by Vista.
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The words “estimate”, “plan”, “anticipate”, “expect”, “intend”, “believe”, “will”, “may” and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements and forward-looking information. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties, assumptions and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be
materially different from any results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements and information. These factors include risks such as:

• our likely status as a “passive foreign investment company” for U.S. federal tax purposes;

• feasibility study results and preliminary assessment results and the estimates on which they are based;

• economic viability of a deposit;

• delays in commencement of construction on the Paredones Amarillos gold project;

• status of our required governmental permits for the Paredones Amarillos gold project;

• increased costs that affect our financial condition;

• a shortage of equipment and supplies;

• whether our acquisition, exploration and development activities will be commercially successful;

• fluctuations in the price of gold;

• inherent hazards of mining exploration, development and operating activities;

•calculation of mineral reserves, mineral resources and mineralized material and the fluctuations thereto based on
metal prices, inherent vulnerability of the ore and recoverability of metal in the mining process;

• environmental regulations to which our exploration and development operations are subject;

• our receipt of future payments in connection with our disposal of the Amayapampa gold project;

• leverage as a result of our outstanding Notes;

• intense competition in the mining industry;

• our potential inability to raise additional capital on favorable terms, if at all;

•conflicts of interest of some of our directors as a result of their involvement with other natural resource companies;

• potential challenges to our title to our mineral properties;

• political and economic instability in Mexico, Bolivia and Indonesia;

• fluctuation in foreign currency values;

• trading price of our Common shares and our ability to raise funds in new shares offerings due to future sales of our
Common shares in the public or private market;
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•difficulty in bringing actions or enforcing judgments against us and certain of our directors or officers outside of the
United States;

• acquisitions and integration issues;

•potential negative impact of the issuance of additional common shares on the trading price of Vista’s common
shares;

• fluctuation in the price of Vista’s common shares;

• the lack of dividend payments by Vista;

• future joint venture and partnerships relating to Vista’s properties;

• Vista’s lack of recent production and limited experience in producing;

• reclamation liabilities, including reclamation requirements at the Mt. Todd gold project;

• Vista’s historical losses from operations;

• historical production not being indicative of potential future production;

• water supply issues;

• governmental authorizations and permits;

• environmental lawsuits;

• lack of adequate insurance to cover potential liabilities;

• Vista’s ability to retain and hire key personnel;

• recent market events and conditions; and

• general economic conditions.

For a more detailed discussion of such risks and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those in such forward-looking statements and forward-looking information please see the risk factors
contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K (as amended) for the year ended December 31, 2008, under
“Part I—Item 1A. Risk Factors.” The foregoing section of our 2008 Form 10-K (as amended) is incorporated in this filing
and investors should refer to it.  Although we have attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking statements and forward-looking information, there
may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that
these statements will prove to be accurate as actual results and future events could differ materially from those
anticipated in the statements. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to publicly update any
forward-looking statements and forward-looking information, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise.
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ITEM 3.                      QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are engaged in the acquisition of gold projects and related activities including exploration engineering, permitting
and the
preparation of feasibility studies.  The value of our properties is related to the price of gold and changes in the price of
gold could affect our ability to generate revenue from our portfolio of gold projects.

Gold prices may fluctuate widely from time to time and are affected by numerous factors, including the following:
expectations with respect to the rate of inflation, exchange rates, interest rates, global and regional political and
economic circumstances and governmental policies, including those with respect to gold holdings by central
banks.  The price of gold fell to a 20-year low of $253 in July 1999 and has risen significantly since that time to reach
a level of $865 by December 31, 2008 and was $996 on September 30, 2009 and $1,051 on October 20.  The demand
for, and supply of, gold affect gold prices, but not necessarily in the same manner as demand and supply affect the
prices of other commodities.  The supply of gold consists of a combination of new mine production and existing
stocks of bullion and fabricated gold held by governments, public and private financial institutions, industrial
organizations and private individuals.  The demand for gold primarily consists of jewelry and
investments.  Additionally, hedging activities by producers, consumers, financial institutions and individuals can
affect gold supply and demand.  While gold can be readily sold on numerous markets throughout the world, its market
value cannot be predicted for any particular time.

Because we have exploration operations in North America, Indonesia and Australia, we are subject to foreign currency
fluctuations.  We do not engage in currency hedging to offset any risk of currency fluctuations as insignificant
monetary amounts are held in foreign currencies for land holding costs related to the properties owned.

On March 7, 2008, we announced the closing of a private placement in which we offered and sold $30 million in
aggregate principal amount of the Notes (see Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 7). The Notes bear interest at a
rate of 10% per annum (calculated and payable semi-annually in arrears) and will mature on March 4, 2011. We do
not consider our interest rate risk exposure to be significant at this time.

ITEM 4.                     CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The principal executive officer and principal financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of September 30, 2009. Based on the evaluation, the principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures in place are
effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Corporation, including consolidated subsidiaries, in
reports that the Corporation files or submits under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
on a timely basis in accordance with applicable time periods specified by the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Corporation in the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Corporation’s management, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
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There has been no change in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
September 30, 2009, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1.                     LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not aware of any material pending or threatened litigation or of any proceedings known to be contemplated by
governmental authorities which are, or would be, likely to have a material adverse effect upon us or our operations,
taken as a whole.

ITEM 1A.                     RISK FACTORS

Except for the risk factors as provided below, there have been no material changes from the risk factors as previously
disclosed in our Form 10-K, which was filed on with the SEC on March 13, 2009 and amended on April 15, 2009.

Acquisitions and integration issues may expose the Corporation to risks.

The Corporation’s business strategy includes making targeted acquisitions.  Any acquisition that the Corporation
makes may be of a significant size, may change the scale of the Corporation’s business and operations, and may expose
the Corporation to new geographic, political, operating, financial and geological risks.  The Corporation’s success in its
acquisition activities depends on its ability to identify suitable acquisition candidates, negotiate acceptable terms for
any such acquisition and integrate the acquired operations successfully with those of the Corporation.  Any
acquisitions would be accompanied by risks.  For example, there may be significant decreases in commodity prices
after the Corporation has committed to complete the transaction and has established the purchase price or exchange
ratio; a material ore body may prove to be below expectations; the Corporation may have difficulty integrating and
assimilating the operations and personnel of any acquired companies, realizing anticipated synergies and maximizing
the financial and strategic position of the combined enterprise and maintaining uniform standards, policies and
controls across the organization; the integration of the acquired business or assets may disrupt the Corporation’s
ongoing business and its relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and contractors; and the acquired
business or assets may have unknown liabilities which may be significant.  If the Corporation chooses to use equity
securities as consideration for such an acquisition, existing shareholders may suffer dilution.  Alternatively, the
Corporation may choose to finance any such acquisition with its existing resources.  There can be no assurance that
the Corporation would be successful in overcoming these risks or any other problems encountered in connection with
such acquisitions.

The issuance of additional common shares may negatively impact the trading price of the Corporation’s common
shares.

The Corporation has issued equity securities in the past and may continue to issue equity securities to finance its
activities in the future, including to finance future acquisitions, or as consideration for acquisitions of businesses or
assets.  In addition, outstanding options and broker warrants to purchase common shares may be exercised, resulting
in the issuance of additional common shares.  The issuance by the Corporation of additional common shares would
result in dilution to the Corporation’s shareholders, and even the perception that such an issuance may occur could
have a negative impact on the trading price of the common shares.

The price of the Corporation’s common shares may fluctuate and may result in losses to investors.

The trading price of the Corporation’s common shares has been and may continue to be subject to large fluctuations,
which may result in losses to investors.  The high and low intraday sale prices of its common shares on the Amex
were $13.55 and $4.34 in 2006; $9.45 and $3.80 in 2007; $5.95 and $0.77 in 2008; and $2.92 and $1.16 for
the nine-months ended September 30, 2009 and on the TSX were CDN$14.95 and CDN$5.05 in 2006; CDN$10.68
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and CDN$4.07 in 2007; CDN$5.99 and CDN$0.98 in 2008; and CDN$3.63 and CDN$1.40 for the nine-months ended
September 30, 2009.  The trading price of the Corporation’s common shares may increase or decrease in response to a
number of events and factors, including:

• trends in the gold mining industry and the markets in which the Corporation operates;

• changes in the price of gold;

• changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts;

• acquisitions and financings;

• global and regional political and economic conditions and other factors;

• general stock market conditions;

• the operating and share performance of other companies that investors may deem comparable to the Corporation;
and

• purchase or sales of blocks of the Corporation’s common shares.

This volatility may adversely impact the price of the common shares regardless of the Corporation’s operating
performance.

- 24 -

Edgar Filing: VISTA GOLD CORP - Form 10-Q

53



Table of Contents

The Corporation has never declared dividends.

The Corporation has never declared or paid any dividends on its common shares.  Currently, the Corporation intends
to retain its earnings, if any, to finance the growth and development of the business and does not expect to pay
dividends or to make any other distributions in the future, which may limit the way in which investors may realize any
returns on their investment.

Joint ventures and other partnerships in relation to the Corporation’s properties may expose the Corporation to risks.

The Corporation may enter into joint ventures or other partnership arrangements with other parties in relation to the
exploration, development and production of certain of the properties in which the Corporation has an interest.  Joint
ventures can often require unanimous approval of the parties to the joint venture or their representatives for certain
fundamental decisions such as an increase or reduction of registered capital, merger, division, dissolution,
amendments of constating documents, and the pledge of joint venture assets, which means that each joint venture
party may have a veto right with respect to such decisions which could lead to a deadlock in the operations of the joint
venture or partnership.  Further, the Corporation may be unable to exert control over strategic decisions made in
respect of such properties.  Any failure of such other companies to meet their obligations to the Corporation or to third
parties, or any disputes with respect to the parties’ respective rights and obligations, could have a material adverse
effect on the joint ventures or their properties and therefore could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s
results of operations, financial performance, cash flows and the price of common shares.

The Corporation has no history of producing metals from its current mineral properties and limited experience with
producing mines; there can be no assurance that it will successfully establish mining operations or profitably produce
precious metals.

The Corporation has no history of producing metals from its current mineral properties.  The Corporation does not
produce gold and does not currently generate operating earnings.  While the Corporation seeks to move the Paredones
Amarillos and Mt. Todd gold projects into production, such efforts will be subject to all of the risks associated with
establishing new mining operations and business enterprises including:

• the timing and cost, which are considerable, of the construction of mining and processing facilities;

• the ability to find sufficient gold reserves to support a profitable mining operation;

• the availability and costs of skilled labor and mining equipment;

• compliance with environmental and other governmental approval and permit requirements;

• the availability of funds to finance construction and development activities;

•potential opposition from non-governmental organizations, environmental groups, local groups or local inhabitants
which may delay or prevent development activities; and

•potential increases in construction and operating costs due to changes in the cost of fuel, power, materials and
supplies.

The costs, timing and complexities of mine construction and development may be increased by the remote location of
the Corporation’s properties.  It is common in new mining operations to experience unexpected problems and delays
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during construction, development and mine start-up.  In addition, the Corporation’s management will need to be
expanded.  This could result in delays in the commencement of mineral production and increased costs of
production.  Accordingly, the Corporation cannot assure you that its activities will result in profitable mining
operations or that it will successfully establish mining operations.

The Corporation’s continuing historical reclamation obligations at the Mt. Todd gold project and its reclamation
requirements on other properties could require significant additional expenditures.

The Corporation could be responsible for the reclamation obligations related to previous disturbances located on all of
its properties, including the Mt. Todd gold project.  The Mt. Todd site was not reclaimed when the original mine
closed and as a result, the dumps and heap leach pad require ongoing care and maintenance.  The Corporation
provides that care and maintenance, but will not be responsible for the environmental liability resulting from previous
operations until the Corporation makes the decision to re-open the mine and has received the appropriate permits.  The
satisfaction of any bonding requirements and continuing or future reclamation obligations on the Corporation’s
properties will require a significant amount of capital.  There is a risk that the Corporation will be unable to fund these
historical and future reclamation requirements, and further, that the regulatory authorities may increase reclamation
and bonding requirements to such a degree that it would not be commercially reasonable to continue exploration or
development activities on such properties, including at the Mt. Todd gold project.  Such events could have a material
adverse effect on the Corporation’s results of operations, financial performance, cash flows and the price of the
common shares.
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The Corporation has a history of losses and may incur losses in the future.

The Corporation has incurred losses since inception and may incur net losses in the future.  The Corporation incurred
the following losses from operations during each of the following periods:

• approximately $10 million for the year ended December 31, 2008; and

• approximately $13 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The Corporation had an accumulated deficit of approximately $191 million at both September 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008.

The Corporation expects to continue to incur losses unless and until such time as one of its properties enters into
commercial production and generates sufficient revenues to fund continuing operations.  The Corporation has
committed and plans to continue to commit substantial capital and other resources to the ongoing development of the
Paredones Amarillos and Mt. Todd gold projects.  The amount and timing of future expenditures will depend on a
number of factors, including, but not limited to, the progress of ongoing development and operations, permitting
matters, the timing of development, the costs of production, the commercial viability of production and other factors,
some of which are beyond the Corporation’s control.  The Corporation cannot assure investors that it will ever achieve
profitability.

Historical production of gold at the Corporation’s Mt. Todd gold project may not be indicative of the potential for
future development or revenue.

The Mt. Todd gold project was an operating mine in the late 1990’s.  Based on a review of project files, the
Corporation’s management believes that approximately 27.1 million short tons grading 0.031 gold ounces per ton and
containing 826,000 ounces of gold were extracted between 1996 and the termination of mining in 2000.  Processing
was by a combination of heap-leach production from oxide ore and cyanidation of sulfide ore.  The remaining
mineralization consists of sulfide mineralization lying below and along strike of the existing open pit.  Historical
production of gold from the Corporation’s Mt. Todd gold project may not be indicative of the potential for future
development of the property.  Due to the uncertainties associated with exploration and development, including
variations in geology and structure, there is no assurance that the Corporation’s development efforts will be successful
or that prior operating results are reflective of additional or economically developable deposits.  Investors in the
Corporation’s securities should not rely on historical operations as an indication that the Corporation’s mining
properties will be placed into commercial production again or that such properties will produce revenues or be
profitable.

The Corporation cannot assure you that it will have an adequate supply of water to complete desired exploration or
development of its mining properties.

The Corporation has obtained permits and water rights that it currently uses to service the activities on its various
properties and the Corporation plans to obtain all required permits and water rights to serve other properties it may
develop or acquire in the future.

However, the amount of water that the Corporation is entitled to use pursuant to its water rights must be determined
by the appropriate regulatory authorities in the jurisdictions in which it operates.  Such regulatory authorities may
amend the regulations regarding such water rights, increase the cost of maintaining such water rights, or eliminate the
Corporation’s current water rights and the Corporation may be unable to retain all or a portion of such water rights.  In
addition, water at the Mt. Todd gold project is expected to be provided from a raw water dam and reservoir.  Drought
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or drought-like conditions in the area feeding the reservoir could limit or extinguish this
water supply.  Accordingly, there is no assurance that the Corporation will have access to the amount of water needed
to explore or develop its properties or to operate a mine at its properties, which may prevent the Corporation from
generating revenue, and which could materially adversely affect the Corporation’s financial condition, cash flows and
the price of the common shares.

The Corporation requires certain governmental authorizations and permits for its business, including its development
plans and operating activities.  The Corporation could incur substantial costs or disruptions to its business if it cannot
obtain, renew or maintain the necessary authorizations and permits.

A major risk inherent in the Corporation’s business is the requirement to obtain authorizations and permits from
governmental authorities.  Delays in obtaining authorizations or permits, failure to obtain an authorization or permit or
receipt of an authorization or permit with unreasonable conditions or costs could have a material adverse effect on the
Corporation’s ability to develop one or more of its gold projects, including, but not limited to, the Paredones Amarillos
and Mt. Todd gold projects.  The failure to obtain necessary permits could result in an impairment and write down of
the carrying value of its projects.

Vista is awaiting receipt of permits needed before construction can begin on the Paredones Amarillos gold
project.  The Corporation may experience delays in the commencement of construction on the Paredones Amarillos
gold project due to delays in receiving the required permits.  There can be no assurance whether or when construction
at the Paredones Amarillos gold project will commence.  If Vista is unable to acquire the required permits to mine the
Paredones Amarillos gold project, then Visa may not have mineral reserves under SEC Industry Guide 7 or NI
43-101, which could result in an impairment and write down of the carrying value of the project.

The Corporation could be subject to environmental lawsuits.

Neighboring landowners and other third parties could file claims based on environmental statutes and common law for
personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by the release of hazardous substances or other waste material
into the environment on or around our properties.  There can be no assurance that the Corporation’s defense of such
claims will be successful.  A successful claim against the Corporation could have a material adverse affect on the
Corporation’s business prospects, financial condition, results of operation and the price of the common shares.

The Corporation does not insure against all risks to which it may be subject in its planned operations.

The Corporation does not maintain insurance to cover all of the potential risks associated with its operations.  The
Corporation may also be unable to obtain insurance to cover other risks at economically feasible premiums or at
all.  Insurance coverage may not continue to be available, or may not be adequate to cover all liabilities.  The
Corporation might also become subject to liability for environmental, pollution or other hazards associated with
mineral exploration and production which it may not be insured against, which may exceed the limits of the
Corporation’s insurance coverage or which it may elect not to insure against because of premium costs or other
reasons.  Losses from these events may cause the Corporation to incur significant costs that could materially adversely
affect the Corporation’s financial condition and the Corporation’s ability to fund activities on its properties.  A
significant loss could force the Corporation to reduce or terminate its operations on a specific project or altogether.

If the Corporation fails to hire and retain its key personnel, it may have an adverse effect on the Corporation’s
operations.

The Corporation depends on a number of key personnel, including Michael B. Richings, its Executive Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, Frederick H. Earnest, its President and Chief Operating Officer, and Gregory G. Marlier, its
Chief Financial Officer.  The Corporation relies heavily on these individuals for the conduct of its business.  The
Corporation’s management believes that the Corporation’s success depends on the continued service of its key officers
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and there can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to retain any or all of such officers.  The loss of any
one of these personnel could have an adverse effect on the Corporation’s operations.  The Corporation has employment
contracts with each of these key personnel.  The Corporation does not have key man life insurance.

The Corporation’s ability to manage growth effectively will require it to continue to implement and improve its
management systems and to recruit and train new employees.  Although the Corporation has done so in the past and
expects to do so in the future, it cannot assure you that it will be successful in attracting and retraining skilled and
experienced personnel.
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ITEM 2.                      UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.

ITEM 3.                      DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4.                      SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

ITEM 5.                     OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM
6.

EXHIBITS

(a) Exhibits

23.1 Consent of Pincock, Allen & Holt

23.2 Consent of Resource Development, Inc.

23.3 Consent of SRK Consulting (U.S.), Inc.
\
31.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

as amended

31.2Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended

32.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

VISTA GOLD CORP.
(Registrant)
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Date:  November 9, 2009 By: /s/ Michael B. Richings
Michael B. Richings
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

Date:  November 9, 2009 By: /s/ Gregory G. Marlier
Gregory G. Marlier
Chief Financial Officer
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